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The larger the prospect, the more value the request, the 
more likely it gets that a client is tendering the deal. 

Especially in the public sector, clients tend to send out 
“Requests for Proposals” or tenders, in order to get a 
defined deliverable for the best possible price. The tendering 
process includes sometimes: 

§  RFI (a first information request sent out to 
potential bidders) 

§  RFQ or RFP (Request for proposal, request for 
quotation) 

§  LOI (Letter of Intent, negotiated or awarded to 
the best bidder) 

§  Contract (MSA and WO) 

This overview covers the basic questions on the problem: 
“How to win in a competitive environment”? 

It covers the  

§  Presales Phase and questions to ask and get 
answered 

§  The Proposal Writing based on the  
§  Audience evaluation 
§  Winning Themes 
§  Evaluation Matrix 
§  Graphical/optical criteria 

§  Sales Process 

After the course, the audience should be able to 
constructively engage in a proposal writing experience and 
be able to contribute in a meaningful way into proposals that 
are going to be submitted to a critical audience in the client 
organization. 
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1.  Introduction: How and why do companies tender? 
1.  RFI 
2.  RFQ 
3.  Evaluation Matrix 
4.  Audience – Group construction 
5.  Buying Group and Power Matrix   

2.  What do we need to be able to design a proposal? 
1.  Identify Buyers/Buying Group 
2.  Get evaluation criteria (“what constitutes success”) / 

Evaluation matrix 
3.  Get the top “Winning Themes” 
4.  Get a budget 
5.  Get the fears and risks identified 
6.  Have proposal team defined, kicked off and 

manage the writing process (PMO) 
3.  How to decide if we want to propose? 

1.  Can we do it? 
2.  Can we win it? 
3.  Is it profitable? 
4.  What about the risk? 

4.  What does a good proposal consist of? 
1.  Text, Contents, Graphics, Layout 

5.  How to manage the content?  
1.  Scientific versus commercial: The sort order 
2.  Chapters and audiences: The chapters 
3.  Management summary 
4.  The “Winning Themes” 
5.  Risk management and Fix-Price-Proposals 
6.  Agile Principle: Never waste the reader’s time 

(Don’t write wasteful) 
6.  What about Fonts, Pictures, Layout, templates, 

Backgrounds? 
7.  Brochures, Certificates and product information 
8.  Completeness and Checklists 

1.  Proposal format correct? Timeline? 
2.  All documents included? 
3.  How many copies to submit? 
4.  Receipt confirmation printed? 
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“A Request for Proposals (RFP) is one of the standard solicitation strategies used by 
government to compete contract opportunities. An RFP is most often used to acquire 
services, although it may be used in some circumstances to acquire goods.  

A successful RFP process will support the principles of fair, open, and transparent 
procurement; it will satisfy the ministry’s business requirements; and it will meet the 
expectations of government policy and common law.  

Well- prepared RFPs can go a long way to creating effective solutions and programs with 
reliable contractors.” 

(from a government procurement paper, 
http://www.pss.gov.bc.ca/psb/pdfs/MinistryRFPGuide.pdf) 

Companies and public sector organizations are both ruled by a 
number of guidelines and legal guardrails. They need a clear 
documentation, why they have taken a decision and on what 
grounds. If questioned by the government or shareholders, they 
need to be able to justify their expenses. 

Therefore, a systematic process is chosen in procurement 
decisions, to rule out wrongdoing, bad governance or individual 
mistakes. 

Normally, there is a limit as to what amount can be spent 
without comparing proposals. The RFQ/RFP-process assures, 
that all proposals are comparable. 

“For example, an RFP may be issued when: 
•  a customer has a situation for which it is not sure of the 

best solution; 
•  a customer wishes to consider factors other than price in 

selection of a contractor; 
•  a customer would like to see what the experts suggest; 
•  the requirement is complex; 
•  a program is new and the customer would like ideas on 

how to deliver it; or 
•  a customer would like to see if there are alternatives to 

the way it usually acquires a product or service.” 
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An RFI (Request for Information or Request for 
Expression of Interest)  

•  Helps selecting vendors based on decision 
criteria 

•  Reduces complexity for the customer  
•  Reduces “noise” of not fitting vendors 

answering to a RFQ 
•  Is adding expenditure and costs additional 

time, too 
•  Is a solicitation for an introduction to a large 

number of vendors 

Depending on the decision criteria being met, 
the “winning” vendors are invited to tender 

It helps in a multi-stage decision or procurement 
process to pre-qualify vendor. 

Shinetech	   11/26/13	  

Proposal	  Wri2ng	  –	  Armin	  Roth	   	  page	  4	  



Notes: 

•  Purpose: 
•  URL’s: 
•  Reference(s): 
•  Exercise: 

RFQ (Request for quotation / invitation to tender) 

Each RFP is unique. However, there are some common 
steps and decision points that are followed when moving 
from an identified need to the delivery of the required 
goods or services. These steps are as follows: 

1.  The customer identifies a need. 
2.  The customer may consult experts to assist 

with identifying and assessing procurement 
options. 

3.  An RFI may be issued to gather 
background information, such as the 
availability of a service, to be used in 
developing the RFP document. 

4.  An RFI/RFEI may be issued to obtain 
information on the level of interest in the 
planned service opportunity. 

5.  An RFQ may be used to pre-qualify 
suppliers for a specific or a future 
procurement opportunity. 

6.  Once the requirement is fully defined, the 
RFP document is drafted and evaluation 
criteria are determined. 

7.  The customer issues the RFP document. 
8.  A Proponents’ Meeting is often held. This 

information session is open to all potential 
proponents and other interested parties. 

9.  The customer receives the proposals, 
which are evaluated by the evaluation 
committee. 

10.  The customer selects and notifies the 
successful proponent and then notifies the 
unsuccessful proponents. 

11.  A contract is negotiated and signed with the 
successful proponent. 

12.  Individual debriefing sessions may be held 
with unsuccessful proponents. 

13.  The service is performed or the goods are 
delivered. 
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The evaluation matrix may or may not be shared 
with the bidders. If it is not part of the RFQ or 
invitation to tender, the most important task for 
the sales person is to get hold of it or at least 
have the information shared with her or him. 

The matrix gives valuable information on the 
criteria the customer applies in awarding the 
contract. Not always are the criteria as one 
would think from the amount written in the RFQ 
documents of from talking to the managers in the 
client organization. 

Only the companies faring well in the evaluation 
(e.g. belonging to the upper third) stand a 
sporting chance to be evaluated in the financial 
or cost area – except if there isn’t any answering 
the questions to the happiness of the clients 
evaluation team.  

In this case, the RFQ may be extended or the 
number of vendors increased.  
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Audience 

What is the difference between a book and a 
proposal? In a book, you read from start to finish 
(some read the end first…) but normally you read all 
pages. 

A proposal is different: normally, several readers 
cover different aspects of the proposal. Not everyone 
may read all parts of it. The decision makers may 
have access to the whole proposal, but normally 
trust in the summaries and evaluation of the 
specialists. 

So an architect may cover the design of a solution 
the aspects of using off the shelf components, while 
a PM or senior resource manager looks at CVs and 
an expert looks at the development languages 
covered, the modules offered, the integration 
aspects and the technology stack or the use of OSS. 

The legal team looks at the compliance statements 
to the legalities and the commercial director sees the 
cost information. 

As funny as that may seem, the decision makers 
know the proposals the least! 

There are three categories of readers: 
1.  Specialists 
2.  Generalists who think they are still specialists 
3.  Non-specialists  
The specialists have different needs than the other 
groups. They write the evaluation. The others belong 
to the decision makers. 
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The power-games in organizations are often 
complicated. 

Not always is the top guy the decision maker. 
Sometimes someone is a decision taker, rather 
than a decision maker – the decision is being 
prepared so that it is easy… 

Each individual has a set of motivations, which 
influence their decision process. Sometimes, 
having attended the same school or university as 
a member of the decision group determines the 
outcome of the decision process, sometimes it is 
the budget, sometimes it is the achievable return 
of investment. 
All these motivation factors should be 
considered. Sometimes it is well worth the effort 
to look into the return of investment for the client, 
as they never thought about doing it – and they 
take the one that sits “on their side of the table”! 

The members of the buying group need to be  

- Identified 
- Classified according to their decision criteria 
- And considered in the design of the proposal  
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Prior to writing the proposal, the sales person 
has a job to do. The background is necessary 
knowledge to be shared with the proposal team. 
It is best shared in a stand-up, addressing the 
questions above. 
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How to decide if we want to propose? 

We should not fear to ditch a case that does not 
promise to be winnable, doable or that is too 
risky. Send in a company brochure and come 
back next time. 

A proposal is always a costly endeavour. 
Therefore, we need to answer a number of 
questions, as per the sales process. 

The questions should be answered in a group, 
not individually. Delivery, PMO and sales, as well 
as presales, management, finance and legal 
should contribute. 

The essential questions are: 

•  Can we do it? 
•  Can we win it?  
•  Is it profitable?  
•  What about the risk? 
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The most important thing in order to win, is making 
the arguments for our solution easy to find for our 
readers – corresponding to the customer 
requirements. 

Key points may never be buried in other masses of 
information. Key points may never be hidden behind 
irrelevant other things. 

Like in Agile Software development, we never deliver 
anything the client has not asked for or approved, 
unless it is really, really essential – same with the 
proposals. If the technical hardware architecture has 
been asked for, let’s spend a chapter on it, even if 
the customer takes care of it in the end, not us. If 
not, just enter a line stating that hardware 
requirement will be covered and a recommendation 
is being issued during the project. 

Sales needs to find out, what the customer really 
wants and fears. Playing on these issues, help 
winning against the competition. For example, the 
customer may have issues with migration of data, 
when moving from a previous to a newly developed 
system. Why not pull together a chapter on the 
importance of safe data migration? 

If our competition is known (hey, just ask the client – 
the can decline to answer, but why?), we can state, 
that (for example) we have a great track record of IP 
protection for 12 years, while “some” competition 
don’t… We do not mention their names in writing, 
though, but in a conversation we may name names. 
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Method of generating a winning proposal 

1.  During Kick-Off there are some materials 
everybody needs: 

1.  RFQ information and background by 
sales manager 

2.  Fixed general parameters (e.g. if length 
is limited or there is a special buffer 
needed in the end of the proposal to 
have it bound & boxed) 

3.  Strategy and topics for each writer 
4.  Team construction and responsibilities 

by chapter 
5.  Time plan 
6.  The planned order of content of the 

proposal 
7.  The review plan, counting backwards 

from submission, with at least 1 day 
after finalization to weed out writing, or 
printing errors, the legal and finance 
approval (1-2- days), so everybody 
works against the date of the final 
version approximately 3 days before 
submission. 

2.  Four (iterative) steps to generate the proposal 
document: 

1.  Analysis (key topics, RFQ doc and 
competition) 

2.  Definition (technical and managerial 
criteria) 

3.  Planning (order of content, headlines, 
figures and pictures, copy text), fonts, 
layout and background pictures 

4.  Production (draft -> review -> final) 
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Check the commas: they are written like this, not 
like this , 

Check the capitalization of words. It is “SQL 
Server”, not sqlserver or sql Server, and it is 
“Windows” not “windows”, it is Java not JAVA. 
Use a spell-checker and also check the 
grammar. Nobody knows “Orcale” 

Avoid using the word “some” too often. 

Avoid abbreviations, except where they are 
really, really common. 

Use Word functions, that help you edit the text 
later: use the same “normal.dot” for all proposal 
texts, so all headlines and body text look the 
same, the pages have the same aspects etc. 

Have someone not familiar with the text proof-
read the text in a “red-review” before printing. 
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Manage the content 

We are looking at a commercial proposal. The 
way to write it, differs from the way you may 
have written your thesis. While the scientific text 
is started from a set of general observations and 
is funneled down to the details of a given 
problem, we have to look at it from the angle of 
the reader. 

Therefore, the conclusion always comes first, 
later it is justified in the detailed body-text! 
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Ask a good number of reasonable questions: 
•  Are the specifications clearly spelled out in the terms of the 

agreement? Am I clear what the work is, and when, where, how 
and by whom it has to be done? 

•  Is it clear what the contractor has to provide by way of tools and 
equipment, insurance, safety information, and workplace 
documentation? Is it clear what the organization tendering out will 
contribute? Does the contract provide for price variations and is 
this clearly spelled out? 

•  Does the contract require work to be performed by a specified 
person? Can you sub-contract? Are there any conditions being 
imposed on those arrangements? If the contractor subcontracts 
work to another party it is usual to have a similar agreement 
covering the relevant areas of the contract, with the sub-contractor. 
This protects all parties. 

•  Who is responsible for scheduling the work? 
•  Is the timeframe for the operation of the contract clearly spelled 

out? Is it reasonable? 
•  What is the basis for payment for the work performed? What 

records have to be kept? Are invoices required to be submitted by 
the person performing the work? 

•  What provisions relate to termination of the contract or agreement 
between the parties?  

•  Does the contract provide the opportunity to profit from sound 
management in the performance of work? Are there incentive 
payments? 

•  Does the contract have any special conditions, possibly related to 
the nature of the work. These can include: 

•  Confidentiality - generally bound not to disclose or discuss 
any confidential information obtained in course of per- 
formance of duties; 

•  Security issues - contractor may have to ensure that all 
employees or sub-contractors have identity passes, locks & 
keys and accept responsibility for actions of employees e.g. 
smoking, drinking, doing drugs & personal grooming. Some 
contracts require that any person undertaking the contracted-
out work has to have had police clearance; 

•  Safety Issues - the equipment is safe and in good order, 
designated storage areas & containers are used for 
equipment…  

•  Contractor to bear costs of any damages to property. 
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The Layout needs to take into account that the 
readers may be in a hurry, may be lacking 
concentration and have a short span of attention. 

Therefore an abundance of structural reminders 
of essential arguments is always helpful. Text-
boxes on the side of the page may help hammer 
the arguments in. 

Graphics are nice, but should be well captioned 
and positioned in a suitable manner on the page: 
Not too much in the top, not too far down on the 
page. Otherwise the page gets “overweight” into 
one direction. 

Check for chapter headlines that are at the end 
of each page (these are lost!) before printing. 
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They never said that, but they act like it. 
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We now assume we have finished the writing-
process, have filled all the blanks, have a good 
technical architecture, a great solution, a 
sensible time-line and a fine project plan. We 
figure our price covers our cost, margin and 
some contingency, just in case. We have 
considered all the risks and have done all the 
checks on the availability of teams and 
management. Now, are we ready to submit our 
proposal? 

Well, we might double check on a couple of 
essentials, just to make sure: 
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